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CORPORATE INFORMATION

During the year, the Group was involved in the distribution
of computer hardware and software products and the
provision of computer technology services. The provision of
broadband Internet equipment, network security software and
business software systems was discontinued during the year,
following the disposal of DMX Technologies Group Limited
and its subsidiaries. Further details of the discontinued

operations are included in note 4 to the financial statements.

Other than the foregoing, there were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the

year.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICE

The following new and revised Hong Kong Statements of

Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs"”) are effective for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements:

e SSAP 1 (Revised) “Presentation of financial
statements”

e SSAP 11 (Revised)

e SSAP 15 (Revised)

“Foreign currency translation”
“Cash flow statements”
e SSAP 33 “Discontinuing operations”

e SSAP 34 "Employee benefits”

These SSAPs prescribe new accounting measurement and
disclosure practices. The major effects on the Group's
accounting policies and on the amounts disclosed in these
financial statements of adopting these SSAPs are summarised

as follows:

DRAEHR

PR AN B4 S B TR S E @
DEAREEMBMBRE 2 EH - AEH
# H %= DMX Technologies Group Limited
REMBARE NERNKRIERHEEEE
BERE RBREREREER RS
BRIEEG 2 — S HBHN M EREM
G

BbatE REBEZ TEEBHERF

HARSETERGHEKER

E/
2

ERBAEEUBRER ERRAUT
ARSI 2 BARHER LR ([ &3t
#8])

o EREMNE IR (EET)  [HBERRZZED

£
o EFERENG(EET)  [HEARE]
o BHEMNFSH (BB [RERER]
o EEEMNEIG [REEEXH]
o BEENFE3ME [EE&7

ZEGFERFTAM 2 B ERIE
Bhl- Mz EFSH ENH AR EE K
REFBHRERABESEZIIZZEHML
LN



Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEEBER D A

I \otes to Financial Statements
Bt %% R 3k MY &F

31

December 2002 —EZEZ-_F+=-_A=+—H

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICE (continued)

SSAP 1 prescribes the basis for the presentation of financial
statements and sets out guidelines for their structure and
minimum requirements for the content thereof. The principal
impact of the revision to this SSAP is that a consolidated
statement of changes in equity is now presented on page 43
of the financial statements in place of the consolidated
statement of recognised gains and losses that was previously

required and in place of the Group's reserves note.

SSAP 11 prescribes the basis for the translation of foreign
currency transactions and financial statements. The principal
impact of the revision of this SSAP on the consolidated
financial statements is that the profit and loss accounts of
overseas subsidiaries are now translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for the year,
whereas previously they were translated at the exchange rates
at the balance sheet date. The adoption of the revised SSAP
11 has had no material effect on the financial statements.
Further details of this change that has resulted from the
revised SSAP are included in the accounting policy for “Foreign

currencies” in note 3 to the financial statements.
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IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICE (continued)

SSAP 15 prescribes the revised format for the cash flow
statement. The principal impact of the revision of this SSAP
is that the consolidated cash flow statement now presents
cash flows under three headings, cash flows from operating,
investing and financing activities, rather than the five headings
previously required. In addition, cash flows from overseas
subsidiaries arising during the year are now translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions, or at an approximation thereto, whereas
previously they were translated at the exchange rates at the
balance sheet date, and the definition of cash equivalents
for the purpose of the cash flow statement has been revised.
Further details of these changes and the prior year
adjustments that have resulted from them are included in the
accounting policies for “Cash and cash equivalents” and
“Foreign currencies” in notes 3 and 30(a) to the financial

statements.

SSAP 33 replaces the existing disclosure requirements for
discontinuing operations, which were previously included in
SSAP 2. SSAP 33 defines a discontinuing operation and
prescribes when an enterprise should commence including
discontinuing operation disclosures in its financial statements
and the disclosures required. The principal impact of this
SSAP is that more extensive disclosures concerning the Group’s
discontinuing operations are now included in note 4 to the

financial statements.

o REEITEBSTERER
ZEE @\

G EAFEISRATARSRER 2R
ABFTHESHENZIEFER KE
RenB8R[ELE RERBREZHMR
SzReRE-REJRLRE MIFK
BERERBEASTIE UL FREINME
RAEEZRERERERXZH Y ZEX
EBMOERBE MIEBTREERZE
ZHE MREARERARSEFEN LT
ENCIEET -BHZSEHRAMES
2L FERBE - SFBENUBRERM
H3RME3@EERREEED] R
[N | @ at R A

G EREBRMA S ERE25RE B
RIS EBIRT 2 REBERE - G54 E
FEIBWINAR LR ERB 2EER LA H
CEEAANYBRRBBERLEEED
ZHREABREEM IR EFER 2
TEFER UBHRRWFIAEFERESR
SEZERIEEK-



Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEEBER D A 50

Annual Report 2002 £ #{

I \otes to Financial Statements
Bt %% R 3k MY &F

31 December 2002 —ZEZ=-_F+=-A=+—H

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICE (continued)

SSAP 34 prescribes the recognition and measurement criteria
to apply to employee benefits, together with the required
disclosures in respect thereof. The adoption of this SSAP has
resulted in no change to the previously adopted accounting
treatments for employee benefits. In addition, disclosures are
now required in respect of the Company’'s share option
scheme, as detailed in note 28 to the financial statements.
These share option scheme disclosures are similar to the Rules
Governing Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) disclosures previously
included in the Report of the Directors, which are now
required to be included in the notes to the financial statements
as a consequence of the adoption of this SSAP.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Statements of Standard Accounting Practice,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for the periodic remeasurement of certain

fixed assets, as further explained below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2002. The results of the subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are consolidated from
or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal,
respectively. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit
and loss account to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated

at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's
share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities

acquired as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised on the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of a maximum

period of 10 years.

SSAP 30 “Business combinations” was adopted as at 1 January
2001. Prior to that date, goodwill arising on acquisitions was
eliminated against consolidated reserves in the year of
acquisition. On the adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied
the transitional provision of SSAP 30 that permitted such
goodwill to remain eliminated against consolidated reserves.
Goodwill on acquisitions subsequent to 1 January 2001 is
accounted for in accordance with the SSAP 30 goodwill

accounting policy above.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

On disposal of subsidiaries, the gain or loss on disposal is
calculated by reference to the net assets at the date of
disposal, including the attributable amount of goodwill which
remains unamortised and any relevant reserves, as appropriate.
Any attributable goodwill previously eliminated against
consolidated reserves at the time of acquisition is written
back and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on

disposal.

The carrying amount of goodwill, including goodwill remaining
eliminated against consolidated reserves, is reviewed annually
and written down for impairment when it is considered
necessary. A previously recognised impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed unless the impairment loss was caused
by a specific external event of an exceptional nature that
was not expected to recur, and subsequent external events

have occurred which have reversed the effect of that event.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence. Related parties may be

individuals or corporate entities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated

depreciation and any impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after fixed assets have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the profit
and loss account in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed
asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of

that asset.

Changes in the values of fixed assets are dealt with as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of
this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the profit
and loss account. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the profit and loss account to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits

as a movement in reserves.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each asset over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:
Medium term leasehold land Over the remaining lease terms
Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 33'/5% or over the lease terms,
whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures 33'5%
and equipment

Motor vehicles 335%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed asset
recognised in the profit and loss account is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of

the relevant asset.

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised
finance leases are included in fixed assets and are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged
to the profit and loss account so as to provide a constant

periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the profit
and loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
the operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account

on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Long term investments

Long term investments in listed and unlisted equity securities,
intended to be held on a continuing strategic or long-term
basis, are stated at cost less any impairment losses, on an

individual investment basis.

When a decline in the fair value of a security below its carrying
amount has occurred, unless there is evidence that the decline
is temporary, the carrying amount of the security is reduced
to its fair value, as estimated by the directors. The amount of
the impairment is charged to the profit and loss account for
the period in which it arises. When the circumstances and
events which led to the impairment in value cease to exist
and there is persuasive evidence that the new circumstances
and events will persist for the foreseeable future, the amount
of the impairment previously charged is credited to the profit
and loss account to the extent of the amount previously

charged.

The gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
such securities are credited or charged to the profit and loss

account in the period in which they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of whether
there is any indication of impairment of any asset, or whether
there is any indication that an impairment loss previously
recognised for an asset in prior years may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use

and its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, when the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of an asset, however not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the
profit and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with

the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the profit and loss account

as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the projects are clearly
defined; the expenditure is separately identifiable and can be
measured reliably; there is reasonable certainty that the
projects are technically feasible; and the products have
commercial value. Product development expenditure which
does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses and are
amortised using the straight-line basis over the commercial
lives of the underlying products not exceeding three years,
commencing from the date when the products are available

for use.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to

completion and disposal.

Accounts receivable

The payment terms granted by the Group vary from project
to project and may include cash on delivery, advance payment
and credit of 30 to 90 days from different stages of the
projects. Trade receivables are recognised and carried at
original invoiced amount less provisions for doubtful debts
which are recorded when collection of the amounts is no

longer probable. Bad debts are written off as incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand

and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Prior to the adoption of the revised SSAP 15 during the year,
as explained in note 2 to the financial statements, cash
equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement also
included advances from banks repayable within three months
from the date of the advance, in addition to bank overdrafts.
The change in definition has resulted in a prior year
adjustment relating to trust receipt loans, further details of

which are included in note 30(a) to the financial statements.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including

term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can

be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in

finance costs in the profit and loss account.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
significant timing differences to the extent it is probable that
the liability will crystallise in the foreseeable future. A deferred
tax asset is not recognised until its realisation is assured

beyond reasonable doubt.

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under
certain circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as
at the balance sheet date is permitted to be carried forward
and utilised by the respective employees in the following
year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet date for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the

year by the employees and carried forward.

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 34 during the year, as explained
in note 2 to the financial statements, the Group did not
accrue for paid annual leave carried forward at the balance
sheet date. This change in accounting policy has had no

material effect on the financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the required
number of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible
for long service payments under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in the event of the termination of their
employment. The Group is liable to make such payments in
the event that such a termination of employment meets the
circumstances specified in the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance.

A contingent liability is disclosed in respect of possible future
long service payments to employees, as a number of current
employees have achieved the required number of years of
service to the Group up to the balance sheet date, in order
to be eligible for long service payments under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance if their employment is terminated in
the circumstances specified. A provision has not been
recognised in respect of such possible payments, as it is not
considered probable that the situation will result in a material

future outflow of resources from the Group.

Share options scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. The
financial impact of share options granted under the share
option scheme is not recorded in the Company’s or the
Group’s balance sheet until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recorded in the profit and loss
account or balance sheet for their cost. Upon the exercise of
share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded by the
Company as additional share capital at the nominal value of
the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the
Company in the share premium account. Options which are
cancelled prior to their exercise date, or which lapse, are

deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
participating employees’ relevant income and are charged to
the profit and loss account as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed

into the Scheme.

The Group has joined a mandatory central pension scheme
operated by the PRC government for its PRC employees, the
assets of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions made are based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries and are charged to the profit and loss
account as they become payable, in accordance with the
rules of the scheme. The employer contributions vest fully

once they are made.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over

the goods sold;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) from the rendering of services, including fixed price
service contracts, based on the stage of completion
of the transaction, provided that this and the costs
incurred, as well as the estimated costs to completion
can be measured reliably. The stage of completion of
a transaction associated with the rendering of such
services is established by reference to the costs
incurred to date as compared to the total costs to be

incurred under the transaction;

(0 maintenance income, on a time proportion basis over

the period of the contract;

(d) interest income, on a time proportion basis taking
into account the principal outstanding and the

effective interest rate applicable; and

(e) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the capital and
reserves section of the balance sheet, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and

declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they

are proposed and declared.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the applicable
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated at the applicable exchange
rates ruling at that date. Exchange differences are dealt with

in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars using the
net investment method. The profit and loss accounts of
overseas subsidiaries are translated to Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year, and their
balance sheets are translated to Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting
translation differences are included in the exchange fluctuation

reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated to Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.

Prior to the adoption of the revised SSAPs 11 and 15 during
the year, as explained in note 2 to the financial statements,
the profit and loss accounts and the cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries were translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The adoption of
the revised SSAP 11 has had no material effect on the financial
statements, while the adoption of the revised SSAP 15 has
resulted in changes to the layout of the consolidated cash
flow statement, but has had no material effect on the amounts

previously reported in prior years.
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 4.

During the year, the Group discontinued its business involving
the provision of broadband Internet equipment, network
security software and business software systems, following
the disposal of DMX Technologies Group Limited (“DMX")
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “DMX Group”). The DMX
Group was consolidated by the Group until the date of its
disposal, at which time the assets and liabilities of the DMX

Group were transferred to the loss on disposal of the

discontinued operations, which comprised the following:

o4
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BRIEER

F R AREE M H EDMX Technologies
Group Limited ([DMX] ) & E &2 7] (5
T IDMXEE ) & &R IF IR EIE G A
B ERREREREAERERGES
DMXSEEZLEBHIE ZRALGEF AR
E@EMZEERN MODMXEBZEER AR
EREHEDKRIEEBEEOT:

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Consideration received/receivable HHEDMXEBE B TR Z
in relation to the disposal of the R A& (M &E20%30(e))
DMX Group (notes 20 and 30(e)) 50,000 -
Less: Net assets of the DMX Group & :DMX& B & E B (68,907) -
Legal and professional expenses  HEE4SZ AEREXEA
incurred on disposal (1,025) -
Goodwill (kS (99,377) -
Loss on disposal of the DMX Group & DMXE [ & & (119,309) -

Note:  Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 3 October
2002 (the “Agreement”), the Group disposed of all of its
equity interest in (equivalent to 61% of the issued ordinary
shares of) DMX to seven purchasers of which two were the
then minority shareholders of DMX, for a consideration of

HK$50 million.

Mt REBHA-ZZE-_F+AZAZEER
W ([l AEBRAEEEHHEE
HADMXZ BT A Bk #E (F8 & M DMXE 3
TEMAR61%) - {8 /550,000,000
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

The effective date of discontinuance of the discontinued
operations was 15 October 2002. The turnover and other
income generated from the discontinued operations were
HK$155,084,000 and HK$627,000 respectively (2001:
HK$127,703,000 and HK$799,000). The operating profit
before tax arising from the discontinued operations was
HK$19,446,000 (2001: HK$4,855,000), which included costs
of inventories sold of HK$111,011,000 (2001:
HK$95,122,000), finance costs of HK$306,000 (2001:
216,000) and operating expenses of HK$25,254,000 (2001:
HK$34,913,000).

On 6 September 2002, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) rejected the application of
the Group in respect of compliance with Rule 8.05 of the
Listing Rules in relation to the proposed spin-off of the DMX
Group. The directors expected that, if the DMX Group did
not obtain a listing and remained a subsidiary of the Group,
both the DMX Group and the Group would suffer considerably
because of (i) the lack of additional funding to support the
operation and growth of the DMX Group; and (ii) the loss of
qualified staff based on the directors’ understanding from
the management of the DMX Group. The directors considered
that it was the best interests of the Group to dispose of the
DMX Group, although this resulted in the Group incurring a

loss on the disposal of HK$119 million.
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)

Under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules, the Agreement
constituted a disclosable transaction for the Company. Further
details of the Agreement set out in an announcement of the
Company dated 8 October 2002 and a circular of the
Company dated 29 October 2002.

Due to the disposal of the DMX Group, the turnover and the
loss from operating activities in respect of the Group’s business
of the provision of broadband Internet equipment, network
security software and business software systems for the year,
together with the corresponding amounts for the prior period,
are classified and disclosed under discontinued operations in

accordance with SSAP 33.

The carrying amounts of the total assets and liabilities relating

to the discontinued operations at 31 December were as

follows:

BRIEER )
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HK$'000 HK$'000

FE&T FAET

Total assets BEHLE - 128,033
Total liabilities BERLE - (64,402)
Net assets BEFE - 63,631
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by

geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and
the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
business segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other business
segments. Summary details of the business segments are as

follows:

(a) the banking and finance systems integration services
segment engages in the provision of systems
integration, software development, engineering,
maintenance and professional outsourcing services
customised for banking and finance,

telecommunications and public sector clients;

(b) the software solutions for banks and public sector
segment concentrates on the banking, e-commerce
and public sectors with a business focus on e-business

operations and online marketplaces; and

(c) the broadband Internet equipments, network security
software and business software systems segment
specialised in Internet Protocol networking, Internet
security and web-based television solutions. The
activities of this segment were discontinued during

the year (note 4).

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based

on the location of the assets.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at
the then prevailing market prices.

(a)

Business segments

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss) and
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for
the Group's business segments.

Group

Continuing operations

BEEERH

68
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(a)

Discontinued operations

BRLEH

Software solutions

for banks and
the public sector

Banking and
finance systems

Broadband Internet
equipment, network
security software
and business
software systems

integration services ~ BTRABEH ERERERE
RREBAR RABERZ &S BERRUNKR Eliminations Consolidated
SRBH% BREE EELGES i G4
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TEr  Tér  TEr  FhAr  TEr  FhAr  TEn  FhAr TEr FiEx
Seqment revenue: ABYA:
Sales to external miNBER 84,269 325517 104515 123,167 155084 127,703 - - 343868 576,387
customers fEli &
Interseqment sales PHEHEE - 9 1,095 1437 - 6388 (1,005) (7,924) - -
Interest income FEMA 7% 964 449 442 42 583 - - 1667 1,989
Other income HilA 61 2,014 - 183 205 216 - - 46 2413
Total Eok 85,326 328594 106,059 125229 155711 134,890 (1,095)  (7,924) 346,001 580,789
Seqment results P (11266) (37,413)  (2.259) (11,592) 19,446 4,855 - - 5921 (44,150)
Unallocated interest AARFERA
income 443 820
Unallocated gains AAENE 583 W3
Unallocated expenses  RAERHX (21,524) (39,012)
Loss on disposal of HEBRLEHK
discontinued operations  &18 (119,309) (119,309) -
Loss from operating BExKBE
activities ) (133,886) (82,099)
Finance costs BENA (1204)  (2,204)
Loss before tax hRiER (135,180)  (84,323)
Tax it (4065)  (333)
Loss before minority ~~ R3f 0 8
interests BRAiBE (139,245)  (84,656)
Minority interests PERRER (8,624)  (4,152)
Net loss from ordinary ~ REEHAE
activities £BEEE
attributable to
shareholders (147,869) (88,808)
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.
(a) Business segments (continued)
Group

Continuing operations

RELERH

PEER (®)
(a) E¥5EW(E)
rEW

BRLER

Discontinued operations

Software solutions
Banking and for banks and
finance systems the public sector

Broadband Internet
equipment, network

security software
and business
software systems

integration services ~ HTRAREE ERERERE
RARERAR REERZEH BERRALR Eliminations Consolidated
SREB BREE EELGES | ik
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Tér  Fér  TAr  FhEr  TEr  FhAr  TEr  FEr  TErn  FEn
Segment assets AHRE 23844 195220 90816 90,231 - 195873 (120512) (24,604) 214,148 456,720
Unallocated assets: AAREE:
Long term investment KK E 51,081 51,081
Others iff 57215 29852
Bank overdrafts included Bif AR HBEE
in segment assets LERER 592 - - - - - - - 592 -
Total assets BEE 323,036 537,653
Segment liabilities NHER (ARYY; 67,627 52,287 66,498 - 70,949 (120,512) (24,604) 102,947 180,470
Unallocated liabiities ~ KAREE 41,046 59,364
Bank overdrafts induded Bif ASBEE
in segment assets BB 592 - - - - - - - 592 -
Total liabilities #aE 144,585 239,834
Other segment HbAHER:
information: )
Cash and bank BHAADEE
balances included LREREA
in segment assets ge 45866 60,309 14,023 13,033 - 3,256 - - 59,889 76,598
Pledged time BHAAPEE
deposits included LEEATE
in seqment assets R 2913 3,036 12481 12,144 - 16,75 - - 1539 31,93%
Depreciation and NEREH
amortisation (4.661) (3,779) (3,003) (2,587) (7,333) (8362) - - (14997) (14728
Unallocated amounts ~ RAESE (1,063) (2,137
16,060) (16,865
Provision for doubtful ~ REE®E
debts (2,992) (23,697) (24)  (6,018) - (4,165) - - (3,016) (33,880
Other non-cash EpFREUAN/
incomel(expenses) (F%) (99)  (236) 18 (598) (8) - - - (89)  (834)
Unallocated amounts ~ RAESE (70) (59)
159) 893
Capital expenditure BRRR 102 2528 558 2,643 863 5509 - -

Unallocated amounts A2 ESE
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Geographical segments

The following tables present revenue and certain asset
and expenditure information for the Group's
geographical segments.

Group

Hong Kong

2002

BE

2001

Elsewhere in the PRC  other than the PRC

TRAMKE

2002

2001

5.

70

2HEER (&)
(b) HEHB
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rEEpRSHZMARETEE
BEAXZ2EMIIN TR

rE
Asia Pacific
Eliminations Consolidated
TABE (RERD) i &4

2002

2001 2002

2001 2002 2001

R8I CRT-FIRRCE _TR-FISRCE_FR-FCRR-E_TT-FCRRCE_IT-F

HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TAxr  TEn  TEr  TEr  TErn  TErx
Seqment revenue: AHHA:
Sales to external WIHER
customers e ZBE 12,838 40960 307,094 521,809 23936 13,618 - - 343,868 576,387
Intersegment sales APHHE - 6760 - 99 - 709 - (7,568) - -
12,838 47,720 307,094 521908 23936 14,327 - (7568) 343,868 576,387
Other seqment EABER:
information:
Segment assets PHEE 644,214 244824 194,241 323,623 - 18,170 (567,092) (100,045) 271,363 486,572
Unallocated amounts:  RAEE%E:
Long term investment  RERE 51,081 51,081
Bank overdrats BHAADEE
included in LRITEY
segment assets 592 - - - - - - - 592 -
323,036 537,653
Cash and bank balances Bif AR HBEE
included in segment  ZHE R
assets fgs 3,460 38047 56,770 59,033 - 29 - - 60,230 97,109
Pledged time deposits ~ BifASHEE
included in segment 2 EHEATEH
assets B3 19,884 21,829 10,541 10,107 - - - - 30425 31,936
Capital expenditure BERX 2,386 4,555 1,399 5023 - 1,116 - - 3,785 10,694
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6. TURNOVER AND INCOME 6. EEXBERUz=
Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, EHTEREECEEM EEZFE (BENRKRE
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, and the BRESHN) GRMRE 2 ERFE
value of services rendered. All significant intra-Group AEEBTEAABMZ—EARZER
transactions have been eliminated on consolidation. RAERERIEE-
An analysis of turnover and income is as follows: EEBERWNESTOAT:

Group
REE

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Continuing operations: B E:
Sale of goods HEEM 111,016 409,712
Provision of computer R E A
technology services BT AR 7 77,768 38,972
188,784 448,684
Discontinued operations: AL
Sale of goods HEE M 155,082 126,476
Provision of computer R E A
technology services By AR 7% 2 1,227
155,084 127,703
Total turnover EEET 343,868 576,387
Interest income B A 2,110 2,809
Gross rental income e @A 533 771
Exchange gains, net & H Uk 25 558 - 1,635
Sundry income T U A 516 250
Other income H g A 3,159 5,465
347,027 581,852
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LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The Group's loss from operating activities is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

REXBoBR

Annual Report 2002 £ %R

AEBKEEB 2 BROME (GEA)

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HiiF FE T FET
Costs of inventories sold and EHEFE MRS
services provided R 7% 2 AK 7N 261,433 485,653
Depreciation e 13 7,120 8,327
Amortisation of goodwill R 16 6,174 7,537
Provision for doubtful debts RERE G 3,016 33,880
Research and development costs: 7 & A B R AR
Amortisation of deferred 8 9 3T R B R AR
development costs 14 2,766 1,001
Minimum lease payments T REFEEHEE
under operating leases 2 KRS
in respect of land and buildings 5,846 7,371
Auditors’ remuneration % 2LAD B 2 948 918
Staff costs, excluding directors’ BIRAN (TeE
remuneration (note 8): ExMe) (B8
Salaries e 54,204 66,567
Pension scheme contributions RINE B 3,618 792
Mandatory provident fund EHEATESER
contributions 825 825
58,647 68,184
Exchange losses/(gains), net EHER (W) F5E 400 (1,635)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENEQREE 119,363 -
Loss on disposal of fixed assets, net H&EEEE ERIBFE 159 893
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7.

LOSS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (continued)

The cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2002
include HK$19,350,000 (2001: HK$19,032,000), relating to
direct staff costs and the amortisation of deferred
development costs, which are also included in the respective
total amounts disclosed separately above for each of these
types of expenses for the year.

The amortisation of goodwill and provision for doubtful debts
for the year are included in “Other operating expenses” on
the face of the consolidated profit and loss account.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of the Company’'s directors disclosed

REXB2EBR (@)

HE-_ZTZE-_F+-_A=+—HLEFEZ
S PR AR B B 1 B B B B TR N R T B
[ Ak AN 45 #H B8 2 19,350,000/ T (=&
T —1%F:19,032,000 L) " FBHE DA
AANEFBRAFESERT 2858
I:Flo

AEEHERERRAERABES AKEE
mAZ [EMEEER ] Po

EEMEREEREHESR

REETRAREERTEIFE 1615

pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong BARREEHMEMT:
Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
Group
KEME
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Fees: e
Executive directors HWITES - -
Non-executive directors EHNITES 200 200
Independent non-executive BIEMITES
directors 400 400
600 600
Other emoluments of BITESCHEMME:
executive directors:
Basic salaries, other allowances EXEFe EMZMREWNZ
and benefits in kind 6,108 7,844
Mandatory provident fund BHEAESER
contributions 73 56
6,181 7,900
6,781 8,500
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE 8.
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within the

following bands is as follows:

Annual Report 2002 £ %R

EEMEREBEEHFEE (8

HeBR TH@EEZEEASNT:

Number of directors

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

Z % 7T £ 1,000,000/ 7T

1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000/ T
1,500,001/% 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7T £ 3,000,000/ 7T
3,000,001/ JT & 3,500,000/ 7T

The five highest paid employees included three (2001: four)

directors during the year, details of whose remuneration are

set out above.

Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2001: one)

non-director, highest paid employees are as follows:

EETAK
6 4
- 1
1 2
1 —
- 1
8 8

REXN IEBREHFEERE=%(ZZZF
—FNR)EE REZHMEFEER L

o

RRHEETHRTME (ZTT—F:—
H)FEFRBEZMESFHBN T

HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHEIT
Basic salaries, other allowances EXFe EMFHREDH S
and benefits in kind 1,740 1,140
Mandatory provident fund MRS HR
contributions 12 13
1,752 1,153

75
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

The remuneration of each of the non-director, highest paid
employees for the year ended 31 December 2002 fell within
the Nil to HK$1,000,000 band.

During the year, aggregate of 11,400,000 and 1,000,000
share options with an exercise price of HK$0.431 per share
were granted to three executive directors and the two non-
director, highest paid employees, respectively, in respect of
their services to the Group, further details of which are set
out in note 28 to the financial statements. No value in respect
of the share options granted during the year has been charged

to the consolidated profit and loss account.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2001:
Nil). During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors or the non-director, highest paid employees
as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office (2001: Nil).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
had no significant obligations for long service payments to
its employees pursuant to the requirements under the
Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, at 31 December 2002.

EEMEeREBRBESHEER (&)

HIF—ZTT-_F+-_A=+t—HILFE"
BRHBERSFREZHENTZERTE
1,000,000 7T ©

FRKBREHAEE 2R = 2817
EERMEIFEETRDTREE DRI ER
11,400,00015 % 1,000,00017 1T 1% B & & &
0.4318 7T 2 B IRHE - SIS SR BT 5 R K MY
H28 FRERHBRE EENERQ R
EEmEAPMG-

FALBITEMNESHERFABHRRE
ez 28 (ZFT—F 8) AKER
FALTBAEEHFEETRIHFRESN
W RSB E N AR EE SRR NAK
SEERZ2EE MERRERBZEE (=
TT—FE)

ARREFERE KBEFBEPFESTE
BEGINZHAE AEER_FT_F+
THA=ZT-RHERESUEBERNZ RHMR
B AT



FINANCE COSTS

HK3$'000
TET

HK3$'000
TET

Interest on trust receipt loans and
bank overdrafts wholly
repayable within five years

Interest on finance leases

BERAFAREEEY
SRR B R R IRTT
3SR

BMEMENE

HK3$'000
TET

HK3$'000
T

Current:
Hong Kong
Elsewhere

Overprovision in prior year

Deferred tax — note 26

Tax charge for the year

REE:

BB

Ho A 3 [
EFFEREES

IR E — ff7226

REEBIEAX
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10.

11.

TAX (continued)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16%
(2001: 16%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates, based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof. Tax recoverable represents provisional tax paid in

excess of the estimated tax liability of the Group.

EFERIBCRESRMER QA (“LEHE
of the Company established in the PRC, is exempted from

, a subsidiary

PRC corporate income tax for three years starting from the
year ended 31 December 2001, and thereafter is eligible for
a 50% relief from income tax for the following three years
under the Income Tax Law of the PRC. The standard PRC
corporate income tax rate applicable to L ¥ 838 is 15%. As
a result of the exemptions, 5 #3® is exempted from the
paying of corporate income tax for the year ended 31
December 2001 and the years ending 31 December 2002
and 2003, and will be subject to corporate income tax at the
rate of 7.5% for the three years ending 31 December 2004,
2005 and 2006.

NET LOSS FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2002 was
HK$151,563,000 (2001: HK$105,493,000).

10.

11.

B (#)

BERMNERIDBBFERNEEBESG 2 hET
ERREFEHERI6%(ZTT —F:
16%) VE tH 7 4 o B H fih 3h (2 FT B BN FE AR B
i A2 BRIB T AR R AN 5 AR & TS P T i
B RMERBEM 2 RITEN RERIE
I 51 5 o AT U 12 F 78 B AR dan AR 5 @A AT
BABZEXNEHRIE.

REHERF fﬁxﬂﬁﬂ EAN/N TEEPERI

ZH B ARt Rk SRMTERA
Al ([ @DQ@E_——*¢+:H
Zt+—HULEFERF=ZFRAEREHH

BOAEMEY BR=FHAERR—+
PEH S EBBERZBERBEDEMN

B AR15% - RIFULEHR R FESCENE
E-TT-F+_F=+-HILFEMNE
E_TE_FRIFT=FFTA=1—
HESFREHEREHUMNEEMRGER A
BRBEEZE_ZTNF —ZETRFR_ZF
TRETZA=+—HBIE=EFEFAHER

7 5% IS EMEH

BRREGABEXRZ2FRER

RARRBE-_TZT _F+=-A=+—8H
LHFEZMBEREANEERRENLE B E
%2 F K18 A151,563,0008 7 (Z T ZT —
£ :105,493,000/8 70 ) °
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F+=A=+-8

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the net
loss from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for
the year of HK$147,869,000 (2001: HK$88,808,000) and the
weighted average of 445,291,710 (2001: 362,000,000)

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share amounts for the years ended 31
December 2002 and 2001 have not been disclosed as the
share options outstanding during these years had an anti-

dilutive effect on the basic loss per share for these years.

The effects of the Company’s shares issuable for the
settlement of the additional consideration for the acquisitions
of certain subsidiaries, as further detailed in notes 31(a)(ii)
and (iii) to the financial statements have not been included
in the computation of diluted loss per share as the shares to
be so issued would be fairly priced and are assumed to be

neither dilutive nor anti-dilutive.

12.

/8

Annual Report 2002 £ #{

BRER

BRERNBEBDBEAFERREGAE
2557 FE18147,869,0008 L (ZE T —
£ :88,808,000/& L) HF N BT L @R
2 hn#E ¥ 15 8445,291, 710 (= 2T —
4 :362,000,0000%) 5t & o

BRNEFEREARTEZBRESSRENE
BERESTXE RBEE_TT—FR_
ZE_F+ A=t RLFEZEkE
SBREERY RERE-

EE SRS E BRI ST AR AK
BETHEBAR 2@ EM AT FETE
0 2 28 (WA BH 7 3= I 3£ 31(a) (i) R (i) AT
Fat) *ﬁEiﬁQ%Hv%%‘ﬁZHﬁ@ZE
188 X 3 R A% A L 4 5 S S A
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13. FIXED ASSETS 13. BEEEE
Group AEE
Medium term
leasehold land Furniture,
and building Leasehold  fixtures and
in Hong Kong improvements equipment Motor
REBZHH HE BH-£E vehicles Total
HELHRET MEEB REE AE okl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FAT FHET
Cost or valuation: PESEEALIEE
At beginning of year REN 650 5,677 28,836 3,219 38,382
Additions NE - 250 2,253 1,282 3,785
Disposal of subsidiaries HEKBDR - (1,343) (4,892) - (6,235)
Disposals/write-off HE /e - (584) (2,600) - (3,184)
At 31 December 2002 RZZT=F
+ZA=+—H 650 4,000 23,597 4,501 32,748
Accumulated depreciation: ZENE
At beginning of year REA 89 3,427 15,680 2,608 21,804
Provided during the year ENEE 33 811 5,740 536 7,120
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBLA - (467) (1,685) - (2,152)
Disposals/write-off HE /M - (420) (1,284) - (1,704)
At 31 December 2002 RZZT=F
+ZA=+—H 122 3,351 18,451 3,144 25,068
Net book value: FEFE
At 31 December 2002 RZETETZF
+ZA=+—H 528 649 5,146 1,357 7,680
At 31 December 2001 RZTT—F
+-A=+-8 561 2,250 13,156 611 16,578
Analysis of cost or valuation: ~ FXAE S & A2 :
At cost RAEAE - 4,000 23,597 4,501 32,098
At 30 April 1999 R=AANE
valuation MA=THGE 650 - - - 650
650 4,000 23,597 4,501 32,748
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13.  FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13. BEEEE (&)
Company ARQE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold equipment Motor
improvements RR-HEB vehicles Total
HEMELE kB "E M
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
Cost: B A A :
At beginning of year REH 1,869 876 1,350 4,095
Additions wNE 126 182 1,026 1,334
Disposals & (368) (35) - (403)
At 31 December 2002 RZTTZF
+=-—A=+—8 1,627 1,023 2,376 5,026
Accumulated depreciation:  RIETE:
At beginning of year RE A 1,402 454 975 2,831
Provided during the year FRBHE 234 340 489 1,063
Disposals & (306) (23) - (329)
At 31 December 2002 RZTEZF
+=—A=+—8H 1,330 771 1,464 3,565
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2002 RZTTZF
+=-—A=+—H 297 252 912 1,461
At 31 December 2001 RZTT—F
+=-—A=+—H 467 422 375 1,264
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13.

14.

FIXED ASSETS (continued) 13. BEEEE (#)
The net book value of the fixed assets of the Company and ARAARAEEREREBERE CEE
of the Group held under finance leases included in the total BEZEEDFE PER_ZZT_F+=
amount of motor vehicles at 31 December 2002 amounted A=+—R#B%E57:#912,0008 7L (=%
to HK$912,000 (2001: HK$375,000) and HK$912,000 (2001: = — % :375,000/%7t) % 912,000/ 7T (=
HK$375,000), respectively. TZF—%:375,0008 L) 278
Had the Group’s leasehold land and building been carried at i L REFHIEELRN AR RETE R
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any EFRHREBEAR EREEHSDNA
impairment losses, its carrying value would have been 600,000 7T (ZZZ—%:640,0008 7T) °
approximately HK$600,000 (2001: HK$640,000).
DEFERRED DEVELOPMENT COSTS 14, BEEREBRAKX
Group rEE
HK$°000
F#ET
Cost: PN =R
At beginning of year R E A 4,752
Additions NE 1,095
Write-off Hih 85 (1,614)
At 31 December 2002 RZTEZET-_F+=_A=+—H 4,233
Accumulated amortisation: RIEE -
At beginning of year R E A 3,081
Provided during the year FRNREE 2,766
Write-off g (1,614)
At 31 December 2002 RZTEZEZ-_F+_A=+—8H 4,233
Net book value: FRAFE:

At 31 December 2002 RZEEF+=_A=+—H _

At 31 December 2001 RZEE—F+=-_A=+—H 1,671



15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. RHBLARZER

Company

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T

Unlisted shares, at cost EETBRG ERAE 39,631 39,631
Due from subsidiaries il N - e ] 338,724 272,391
Due to subsidiaries ERTH B AR 2 5E (2,411) (2,699)

375,944 309,323
Provision for impairment (227,925) (91,925)

148,019 217,398

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- R B AR 2 RIBDEKE BB RE

free and have no fixed terms of repayment. EEEEE-
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15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Company

D F

Held directly:
BEERA:

Technology Venture

Investments Limited

Held indirectly:
MERE:

Light International

Holdings Limited

Sequent China/
Hong Kong Limited

Technology Venture
(Software) Holdings
Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
HEMmEL
AR EEE

British Virgin Islands
RERZEE

British Virgin Islands/PRC

RBRAEHE/TH

Hong Kong/PRC
B/ HH

British Virgin Islands
RBRZEE

15.

Nominal value of
paid-up share/
registered capital
BERE/
EMEXAZEE

Ordinary US$1,000
@A 1,000% T

Ordinary US$10,000

LA 10,000% T

Ordinary HK$10,000
L ®B A 10,0008 T

Ordinary US$1,000
EEA%1,000% T

RMBRAT 2R (&)

TEMBARZFBNT:

Percentage of
equity
attributable to
the Company
NS )i
REBILL

100

100

91

100

Principal activities

FTEEH

Investment holding
REZER

Provision of
procurement services

RERBRS

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

72 EARHRE @ R
R E B R

Investment holding

REZR
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15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 15. RHEBATZ#EZE (&)

Company

AT

Held indirectly: (continued)
HERE: (B)

Topasia Computer Limited

Topsoft Limited

Windsor Enterprises Limited

Advanced Digital Technology

Company Limited

Advanced Digital Technology

Company Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
HEMmEL
AR EEE

Hong Kong/PRC
BE/HH

Hong Kong
BE

British Virgin Islands/PRC
RRELRS/TH

British Virgin Islands

RERZEE

Hong Kong/PRC
BE/HH

Nominal value of
paid-up share/
registered capital
BERE/
EMEXAZEE

Ordinary HK$10,000
@A 10,0008 7T

Ordinary HK$10,000
@A 10,000% T

Ordinary US$10,000
L®AE10,000% T

Ordinary US$1,000

Li#AR1,000% T

Ordinary HK$2

ERR2ET

Percentage of
equity
attributable to
the Company
RRE B
REBILL

100

100

100

55

55

Principal activities

FTEEH

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

2 EMRHRE @R
R E MR R

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

DB AR E MR
RET R R

Provision of marketing

services

R TS ERSE

Investment holding
REERK

Provision of systems
integration services and
software development

REZGEK RS R
IR
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15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Company

D F

Held indirectly: (continued)

MERE: (&)

tREREBES
AR AR
(note 1)

(FE&E1)

BERHE (EE) ERAR
(note 2)
(FF3E2)

Bl SRERRE (L&)
AR
(note 3)
(P &E3)

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
HEMmEL
AR EEE

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

15.

Nominal value of
paid-up share/
registered capital
BERE/
EMEXAZEE

Registered capital
US$3,000,000
A E R
3,000,000% 7T

Registered Capital
US$300,964
FMAE R
300,964% 7T

Registered Capital
US$1,000,000
AMER
1,000,000% 7&

RMBRAT 2R (&)

Percentage of
equity
attributable to
the Company
NS )i
REBILL

55

100

100

Principal activities

FTEXEH

Provision of systems
integration services and
software development

REZGEK RS R
IR

Distribution of information
technology products and
provision of computer
technology services

AWE AR E MR
REBRERS

Provision of system
integration and
maintenance services

REZGERRFERDE



Technology Venture Holdings Limited ZERFEEBER D A

I \otes to Financial Statements
B # 3R & M EE

December 2002 —EZT -+ =-_A=+—H

31

15.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

b RSB E S RM AR QA is a wholly-foreign owned
enterprise established by Advanced Digital Technology
Company Limited in the PRC for a period of 15 years
commencing from the date of issuance of its business licence
on 31 October 2000.

WERE (EF) BR2AF is a wholly-foreign owned
enterprise established by Topasia Computer Limited in the
PRC for a period of 20 years commencing from the date of
issuance of its business licence on 29 November 2001.

A= SRR (L&) AR 2 is a wholly-foreign owned
enterprise established by Topasia Computer Limited in the
PRC for a period of 20 years commencing from the date of
issuance of its business licence on 28 January 2002.

During the year, the Group disposed of its interest in the

DMX Group, which amounted to a 51% interest as at 31

December 2001 and a 61% interest as at the date of disposal
(notes 4 and 27(c)).

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results

for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets

of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

15.
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REB AR ZER ()
B -
1. It REEEBEERNMERAR AR

& 1 % » f3 Advanced Digital Technology
Company Limited AR Bz - BT T
TE+A=ST-BERERREL SR
SAREBtTIHF

2. BEME (L) BRARRBEIED
¥ ' M Topasia Computer Limited /1 Ed
Ky BA-FEE—F+—RA=1+IEH
XEeRELBEBET AR _+F-

3. BRELSRERSE (L8) BRARASE
SNE 1% FaTopasia Computer Limited
RHRERL B ZTZ_F-A=+N
HE¥XMREHBHEA AR - T5-

FRAEEEEENDMXE R Z R
—EET—F+t-A=t—HzEEA
51% @ RHE BB &A1 A61% (Fiss
K.27(c)) e

EEeRARLRMINZADAME AR
RIBPEAFEEAIBUAEEEE
FEEAFNDZAF -EEERR/REE
B ARZHERSRERN IR
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16.

GOODWILL 16. BHE
The amount of the goodwill capitalised as an asset in the FARENBAREE  HBRERGEE
consolidated balance sheet, arising from the acquisition of EEEXRBIEFEEER #HIWT:
subsidiaries, is as follows:
Group NEH
HK$°000
F#ET
Cost: B :
At beginning of year REA] 75,372
Additional consideration paid 2 EINME 20,000
Increase in equity interest in subsidiaries P BT BB A B AR N 25 3 N
(note 27(c)) (Mt 5£27(0) 17,716
Disposal of subsidiaries i E 8 A Al (113,088)
At 31 December 2002 W-_BE-_HF+-A=+—H -
Accumulated amortisation: ENit 3k
At beginning of year REA] 7,537
Provided during the year FRNRBE 6,174
Disposal of subsidiaries i E M8 A Al (13,711)
At 31 December 2002 RZTEZET-_F+_A=+—H -
Net book value: BR TH FE -
At 31 December 2002 RZTEZET-_F+=_A=+—H -

At 31 December 2001 RZETE—F+=-_A=+—H 67,835

As detailed in notes 3 to the financial statements, on the
adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied the transitional
provision of SSAP 30 that permitted goodwill in respect of
acquisitions which occurred prior to 1 January 2001 to remain

eliminated against consolidated reserves.

RBAREERA 2 E5HEREI05 2 BE
B (FBERPBHMEMEI) R 2T —

F-A-RAMEKBEL ZHEAIHEER
IREmETEE
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16. GOODWILL (continued) 16. BE (#)
The amount of goodwill remaining in consolidated reserves, N_ZET—F—F - A EKENRE QR
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to 1 January EXmMNARGERBINRzBEREN
2001, is as follows: N
HK$°000
TET
Cost: B :
At beginning of year REH 40,048
Additional consideration paid and payable B & EMEINME
(note 31(a)(ii)(2)) (MFRE31(@))(2)) 3,200
At 31 December 2002 RZZEZ-F+-A=+—H 43,248
Accumulated impairment: ZIERE
At beginning of year and REVIR_ZTEZ
at 31 December 2002 +=ZA=+—H -
Net amount: W@FE:
At 31 December 2002 RZTEZEZ-_F+_A=+—H 43,248
At 31 December 2001 RZTEZT—F+_A=+—H 40,048
As further detailed in note 31(a)(ii) to the financial statements, o0 B 75 3R 3% M 5E 31 (a) (i) AT i — Rl AR
the Group acquired a 55% shareholding in a subsidiary during EEREE-_TTTF+_A=+—HI
the year ended 31 December 2000. Pursuant to the sale and FEBA—BHWEBARSS%RIE-BIEE
purchase agreement, the seller is entitled to additional Ed BB ARERBEIME-RZT
consideration. In the year 2002, the second additional TF BE_HREIRELEL A
consideration was quantified to be HK$3,200,000, which has 3,200,000 7T + B 71| B8R /& T A1 7 52 W2 B K
been accounted for as an adjustment to the cost of acquisition ReHE WRAEEZHEREDNS
previously recognised, and accordingly the amount of goodwiill FELHAE-

previously arising has been adjusted in the current year.
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17.

LONG TERM INVESTMENT 17.

The unlisted long term investment represents the cost of the
Group’s investment in a 19.9% equity interest in ChinaCast
Technology (BVI) Limited ("CCT"), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. CCT is an Internet access and
content provider based in Hong Kong and the PRC and is
principally engaged in the provision of Internet and related
services in the PRC.

The amount due from the investee company is further
analysed as follows:

RERE

JE £ R 3% & BD K & B 5 ChinaCast
Technology (BVI) Limited ([CCT]) 19.9%
MR A 2 2 3B A AN o CCT TR 38 88 IR 20
SEMK BAEBRTFEAEM T
R ERRERANDHEER E2EF
12 {1t B B 48 Ik AR A AR 75 o

MR E R B2 FRIBE — DI T

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B &t FE T FE T
Loans advanced to the investee B TFHIEE AR Z
company, unsecured mIPER (a) 8,755 6,000
Other receivables H th & U X (b) 3,684 2,329
12,439 8,329
Notes: B a# -
(a) Included in the total balance of loans advanced to the investee (a) FABRT FRRERRZEREHE

company, HK$6,000,000 (2001: HK$6,000,000) is unsecured,
interest-bearing at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2%
per annum and is repayable on or before 15 May 2003. The
remaining balance of approximately HK$2,755,000 (2001:
Nil) is unsecured, interest-bearing at the PRC bank lending
rate and was repaid on 21 January 2003.

(b) The other receivables due from the investee company are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

6,000,000/ 7T (= ZZ —4 : 6,000,000
ET) TERR R B BEBRFENES
2BE B BAR-ET=FFA+HAK
ZRIEE - $2EH2,755,0008 L (=&
T ) NEKF EPERTER
MEHE BER-_EE=F—F_+—
HEE-

(b) H et JEUHIR E R B RIA Y EIEA 2
8 K B R R HIR
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19.

December 2002 —ZET-_4#+=-A=+—H

INVENTORIES

18.

90

Annual Report 2002 £ %R

Group
EE

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Information technology FEEE 2
products held for resale BB E®D 15,989 14,795
Work in progress TE& 8,956 -
24,945 14,795

None of the above inventories was carried at net realisable
value at the balance sheet date (2001: Nil).

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivable as at
the balance sheet date, based on invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

19.

REHE R EELERTEIEEA
B(ZET—4:T)-

BREREARRE

REER KBEEZARREEL NG
BRZEYRBRZRREDITWT:

Group

rEH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current to 90 days BNERZ 90K 20,204 145,678
91 days to 180 days 91K £ 180K 13,868 9,887
181 days to 365 days 181K £365K 11,854 25,594
Over 365 days 365K A E 23,196 16,638
69,122 197,797

Included in the Group's accounts receivable is an amount
due from the Group's related company, of which certain
directors of a subsidiary of the Company are directors, of
HK$7,343,000 (2001: HK$5,208,000), which is repayable on
similar credit terms to those offered to other customers of
the Group.

AEEBZEWRRBERIEERASEEGRHE
REl(RRR—HHBARZAETEEA
HEE)RIE7,343,00087C (Z 2% — 4
5,208,000 T) AERAEBHLE T EME
FZHRHNEEKRRTUER

o1
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20. PREPAYMENTS,

I \otes to Financial Statements

DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20.

21.

RECEIVABLES

The aggregate amount of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables included an amount of HK$30,000,000 (2001:
Nil), representing the consideration receivable from several
purchasers in connection with the disposal of DMX.
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, an amount of
HK$5,000,000 was settled in accordance with the Agreement
in note 4. The remaining amount of
HK$25,000,000 is receivable on 30 April 2003 pursuant to
the Agreement.

as defined

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

BEANRE - EEREMERK

TETRIE i @ T H A E W R AR R B R
& DMXFE U & + B 75 £ /830,000,000
T(ZZEZE—F:F) REHEBRE
5,000,000 T 2R IR M 5L 4P R TE W & B
E o R IE 5 #25825,000,000% T =
TT=FMPA=+HUWKE-

21, BERAEEEY
Group Company
AR N

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Cash and bank balances BeRIBITER 26,653 97,109 341 20,515
Time deposits EBENR 64,002 31,936 15,030 -
90,655 129,045 15,371 20,515
Less: Pledged time deposits: & : B4 # E #F 3

Pledged for bank loans HIRITERER (27,649) (29,193) (15,030) -

Pledged for bank HIRITEZER
overdrafts (2,776) (2,743) - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBEEEED 60,230 97,109 341 20,515

At the balance sheet date, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$55,599,000 (2001: HK$58,676,000). The RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

REER NEENUARB ([ARE]) 4
HoRe k& EEYRS5,599,000/ T
(ZZZ—1%:58,676,000% L) - ARETR
AERABRAHEMEN A BiEH R
EEFGIIRERE - FEREESEERTE
RNEE BB BFTEITINEER 2 RIT
BARBABAEMEE-
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ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE

22.

g2

Annual Report 2002 £ %R

ENRERRE

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Wt & F#E o FHET

Trade and bills payables ERNEZEERER 24,638 84,236

Due to certain minority shareholders [Ef# T L &R 2 518 (a) 983 1,052

Due to related companies FERBREEL A2 KIE (b) 651 850

Due to another related company NS —HE@AERR

Z FRIA (© - 22
26,272 86,160

Notes: B 2t -

(a) The amounts due to certain minority shareholders of certain (a) ERTFETFHBRARETLEREZR
subsidiaries represent trade payables, which are unsecured, HANERNE 5 RE it FRE T &K
interest-free and are repayable according to the terms agreed B R2EREARBEZSZVERRIBE
with these minority shareholders. ZIERE R

(b) The amounts due to related companies, representing trade (b) N TEBEARZFIENEN AR
payables to certain related companies in which the directors RIETHEARESNETRESCE
of certain subsidiaries of the Company are also directors, are TERERARZENESRE Mit%H
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of REEEF 2EREBRTCEER
repayment.

() The amount represented trade payables to certain members (0 ZEFRBEDEENERTMNEEE TR

of the Datacraft Asia Ltd Group, were unsecured, interest-
free and had no fixed terms of repayment.

BRAIZENESRE MUEFKREAT
EEM 2EREEEEED-
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22. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE (continued) 22. ENRERERE 5
An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payable as at the REER KEZEZRBMAEE Y BN
balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows: EHEEBEZERRTWOT:
Group
rEE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Current to 90 days BNERZ 90K 14,239 67,009
91 days to 180 days 91 K& 180K - 10,966
181 days to 365 days 181K £365K 3,220 1,979
Over 365 days 365K A b 8,813 6,206
26,272 86,160

23. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EtEEREMENR

Group Company
rEE YN

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
B & TFET FET FET FET
Accrued and & &
other liabilities EmsE 54,373 53,195 1,599 691
Due to a minority  fEf— & L8
shareholder W& Rz FIA (a) 25,478 27,208 - -
Due to another B 5 — %
minority LERE 2
shareholder HIA (b) 10,000 18,720 - -
89,851 99,123 1,599 691
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23.

at

—TE_F+-ZA=+—H

ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

(continued)

Notes:

Part of the amount due to a minority shareholder of a
subsidiary of approximately HK$14,344,000 (2001:
HK$16,074,000) represents the outstanding purchase
consideration payable for the acquisition of a 55%
shareholding in a subsidiary in the prior year (note 31(a)(ii)).
This balance is unsecured and interest-free. Except for an
amount of approximately HK$770,000 (2001: HK$2,500,000)
which is repayable upon the issue of the signed/certified
financial statements of the second post-acquisition accounting
period from 1 September 2001 to 31 August 2002 of the
subsidiary by the auditors of the subsidiary, the remainder of
this balance of approximately HK$13,574,000 (2001:
HK$13,574,000) is repayable on demand.

The remaining balance of approximately HK$11,134,000
(2001: HK$11,134,000) represents an amount advanced from
the minority shareholder to provide for working capital of
this subsidiary. The balance is unsecured, interest-free and is
repayable on demand.

The balance due to another minority shareholder represents
the outstanding purchase consideration payable for the
acquisition of the Group’s initial 51% shareholding in DMX
(notes 16 and 31(a)(iii)). The balance is unsecured, interest-
free and is repayable upon the issuance of the signed/certified
accounts of the subsidiary for the year ended 31 December
2002 by the auditors of the subsidiary.

23.

ff i -

94
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B REREEMSR @

BN —KHBRAR —BLEBE
FRIEH) 514,344,000 T (Z T2 —4:
16,074,000/87C) + Jy E—FEWE —K
B RRISS%REZ AL EEERE
(MFEE31(a)) LR EAEEIE R &
BB #770,00087C (Z 2T —F:
2,500,000/ 7T) 2 ;X IBER M E A Al
BMBEHEHRE REZHBRRAEZ
BiErEtHB (T —FhA—
AE-_ZTZ-_F)N\A=+—80) ¥R
KREEZEIN 413,574,000 T 248
(=== —4%:13,574,000% 70) A E

BEREE-

#911,134,0008 Tz BB (ZTZT—F
11,134,000 7T) IO #IRR T T %
MEARHEEEE R ZHRBAEERM.
FERERERER-

ERTFE—ZLEBREZAREARNFE
I B A £ B RDMXZ #1251 % A 1 2 &
BEERERE (MFE165%310)i) %
BREAEER 28 Y ERNZHBEATF
BB E T -_F+ A =1+—
AILFEBELLES SZEZHBLAA
IRE®REE-
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24,

INTEREST-BEARING AND
LOANS

SECURED BANK 24.

MERBEARITER

Group
rEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Bank overdrafts, secured RITE X AE T 592 -
Trust receipt loans repayable BER—FANEBRZE
within one year, secured Yig B A 514 26,917
Bank loans repayable within AR —FANEE R
one year, secured BERBEA 11,887 10,000
12,993 36,917

As at 31 December 2002, the Group’s banking facilities were

N_ZBE_F+_A=+—H A£ER

secured as follows: TEEZEMBET:

(a) The Group’'s overdraft facilities amounting to (a)
HK$2,000,000 (2001: HK$3,000,000), of which
HK$592,000 (2001: Nil) had been utilised as at the
balance sheet date, are secured by the pledge of
certain of the Group’s time deposits amounting to
HK$2,776,000 (2001: HK$2,743,000) (note 21).

(b) Certain of the Group’s bank loans are secured by: (b)

(i) corporate guarantees executed by the
Company to the extent of HK$86,000,000
(2001: HK$86,000,000);

(ii) the pledge of the Group’s time deposits
amounting to approximately HK$27,649,000
(2001: HK$29,193,000) (note 21);

(iii) a corporate guarantee executed by a subsidiary
of the investee company to the extent of
RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,830,000)
(2001: Nil); and

(iv) a corporate guarantee executed by a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company,
to the extent of Nil (2001: RMB1,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$935,000)).

NEEE F {Z52,000,0008 7T (=
T Z — 4 :3,000,000/8 L) & F
592,000 T (ZET—5:F) 2
REEBBH ZRBUREEE
TEEFE2,776,0008 T (ZEF
— £ :2,743,0005% 5T ) {EE ¥ (B
£21) -

AEFERETRITERZERET

(i) AN A HEfH 2 86,000,000
B (ZDEZE — F
86,000,000/ 7t ) A Al #&
%

(ii) REBHBETHTROA
27,649,000 T (= EF —
££:29,193,0005%8 7T) (Mf&E
21)

(iii) WRE N —REWE LT
fHt 2z AR #%3,000,0007T
(48 % 72,830,000/ 7T )
(ZZEZE—F :F) DAk

R R

(iv) AR —KHMBAR— A
LEBRERHEIARES
T(ZEE-F:  ARK
1,000,0007t ) (& 4
935,000/ 7t) A AIER -
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25. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 25. WMEMHERENRE

ARARAEEHE-WAREBREZ
AEOMBEEN ARMERE WHESH

The Company and the Group lease a motor vehicle for

business use. This lease is classified as a finance lease and

has remaining lease terms of more than two years. BWEL ke
As at 31 December 2002, the total future minimum lease RZZEZ-_F+-_A=+—H ®EHE

ZARZREESLEMOT

payments under finance leases were as follows:

Group Company
rEH YN

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET FET FET
Amounts payable: JFE AT FRIE
Within one year —FR 569 337 569 337
In the second year B _F 372 337 372 337
In the third to fifth BEZEERF
years, inclusive (BEEMF
BIEEN) 522 140 522 140
Total minimum finance BERERIE
lease payments e 1,463 814 1,463 814
Future finance charges RERBEEA (217) (148) (217) (148)
Total net finance lease mE T E EA
payables SR 4R H R 1,246 666 1,246 666
Portion classified as AERBAE
current liabilities %) (526) (270) (526) (270)
Long term portion REH D 720 396 720 396
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FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (continued)

—TE_F+-ZA=+—H

25.

The present value of minimum lease payments under finance

leases is further analysed as follows:

BMEAEEMNTR (5

BEHEZREHESBEEE oMW

Company

ARF

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts payable: JE A kR -
Within one year —FR 526 270 526 270
In the second year F_F 290 302 290 302
In the third to fifth BZEERF
years, inclusive (BREMTF
BEEN) 430 94 430 94
Total present value of HERESZ
minimum lease payments REMETE 1,246 666 1,246 666
DEFERRED TAX 26. EEBIR
Group
AEHE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FAET

At beginning of year R E ) 233 311
Credit for the year — note 10 REFHEE - K10 - (78)
At 31 December wn+=ZA=+—H 233 233




DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. EEFHIE (&)

The principal components of the Group’s deferred tax liability/ REBEEHEERE(BE)ZEXEHD
(asset) position and the amounts not provided for in the R REMBERRIBE2HBOT:

financial statements are as follows:

Provided Not provided

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THET T T T

Accelerated depreciation R ERBITE
allowances -
Tax losses carried forward HEERIEEE (3,718)

(4,067) (3,718)

The Company had no significant potential deferred tax RIZBEZ_F+_A=+—H KX2all
liabilities for which provision has not been made as at 31 ERABECEABCTELEHBEER (ZF
December 2002 (2001: Nil). T—F:F)e
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

27. B&A

iz 3

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Authorised: SETERRA -
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares BREE0.10B LY
of HK$0.10 each 3B 1% 1,000,000,0000% 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEFITRAERA:
501,210,000 (2001: 362,000,000) & REE0.10/# T2 & @K
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 501,210,0000%
(ZZZ—%:362,000,0008%) 50,121 36,200

During the year, the movements in the share capital of the
Company, together with the reasons therefor, were as follows:

(a) On 2 March 2002, 30,769,231 ordinary shares were
issued at a price of HK$0.65 per share to a minority
shareholder of a subsidiary for the settlement of the
first instalment of the outstanding consideration of
HK$20,000,000 in relation to the acquisition of the
Group’s initial 51% equity interest in DMX. Further
details of the acquisition are set out in notes 31(a)(iii)
to the financial statements.

(b) Pursuant to a placing agreement and a subscription
agreement both dated 21 May 2002, the Company,
through an independent placing agent, placed
60,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in
the Company at a price of HK$0.53 per share to
independent third parties. A sum of approximately
HK$30,000,000, net of placement expenses, was

raised and used as working capital of the Group.

RER RRABBRALHRREHIIMT :

(a) RZZE_F=A=H m—MBKH
BRAEI-—BLBREHTEAR
30,769,231[% - G M EE0.658 7T -
LAVE (B B8 WU R £ B R DMX )
M5 1% R AR HREEREZ
& £120,000,0007 7T - B B 2
HMmaFBEaEATBEREMN
FE31(a)(ii)°

(b) KEABY AT _FRA=-T
—BrEEhHERRERHR K2
AEBS - BEURERE ZER
053 B L2 BRMBELE=5EEE
RARIEREEIOETZ LA
}%60,000,000/% -t it EIBTE MK
il & & F 12 % 15 £930,000,0007%
T REREECZEEES-
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 27. BZ& @)

(c) On 4 June 2002, the Group entered into an agreement (c) RZZEZ-FRAMEAB - KRNEEET
for the acquisition of an additional 10% shareholding 3 15 LA (B 28,080,000 It [A)
in DMX from the minority shareholder of the Group 5% B D 8RR U BB DMXEE S
for a consideration of HK$28,080,000, which 10%fcHE - EE ARG £17,716,0008
generated goodwill of HK$17,716,000 (note 16). On 7T (MsE16) R-TE-F4F+
19 July 2002, the consideration was fully settled by HB RABIERER0.562E T2 E
the allotment and issue of a total of 49,964,413 shares I BRI 31T A $£49,964,413/% 1%
of the Company at a price of HK$0.562 per share. MmEHEERE-ZEXFHEK
The transaction constitutes a connected and share FBRRAARAECBEERKRORZ S
transaction as defined in the Listing Rules. Further EEE—THBANERRAARE
details of the transaction are included in the TZFANAZ+TWA @K
Company'’s circular of 24 June 2002.

(d) In July and August 2002, the Company repurchased (d) RZZEZE_F+ARNA KTQA
1,524,000 shares of the Company on The Stock REBBEXZMERAREEE
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited at an aggregate B 5 1,524,000/ - &2 X B &
consideration of HK$355,904 with relevant expenses 355,904 T B Bl A5,107
incurred of HK$5,107. BT e

(e) A summary of the transactions during the year with (e) FRN-BBELAERRREBRARR
reference to the above movements of the Company’s B o SHAMMT
issued ordinary share capital is as follows:

Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERTROHA BRTRE ROBER 5t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET FET
At 1 January 2002 i
—HA—H 362,000,000 36,200 277,121 313,321
Issue of consideration  #1TH (B (@)
shares (a) 30,769,231 3,077 16,923 20,000
Placement of e & % ik 4 (b)
new shares (b) 60,000,000 6,000 25,800 31,800
Issue of consideration — ZEITHR BRI (0
shares (c) 49,964,413 4,996 23,084 28,080
Share issue expenses f&1n 17 & A - - (1,648) (1,648)
140,733,644 14,073 64,159 78,232
Shares repurchased (d) B EIKRH (d) (1,524,000) (152) (209) (361)
501,209,644 50,121 341,071 391,192

HE-2T-F+-A=+-AL
B BT B AR (A
B 3 4% {7 2 8 -

During the year ended 31 December 2001, there were
no changes to the carrying amount or the number of
ordinary shares in issue.
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28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

SSAP 34 was adopted during the year, as explained in note 2
and under the heading “"Employee benefits” in note 3 to the
financial statements. As a result, these detailed disclosures
relating to the Company’s share option scheme are now
included in the notes to the financial statements. In the prior
year, these disclosures were included in the Report of the
Directors, as their disclosure is also a requirement of the

Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 12 June 1999 (the “Previous Scheme”), the Company has
granted certain options to directors and employees of the
Group, including the executive directors of the Company, to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company subject to the
terms and conditions stipulated therein. In order to comply
with the new requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
on granting options under share option schemes, which took
effect from 1 September 2001, the Previous Scheme was
terminated and a new share options scheme (the “New
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to ordinary resolutions
passed by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 30 May 2002. Accordingly, no further
options can be granted under the Previous Scheme as from
30 May 2002. However, for the options remaining outstanding
under the Previous Scheme, the existing rights of the grantees

are not affected.

Pursuant to the Previous Scheme, the subscription price is
equal to the higher of the nominal value of the shares of the
Company or 80% of the average of the closing prices per
share of the Company quoted on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the share options. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options were able to be granted under the Previous
Scheme could not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of

the Company from time to time.

28.

BREE

AN IS IR FE2 R 3 (R ERE A ] A
ME ARERNFARAS T ERE345%-
At ZEEBARRBERETE 25F5E
BERCHATBRRMT-REF ZF
BEZLETRAREANESTSTREAN-

REARBDR-NANFRA+ZRES
2R ([BAE]) AaBEA
SHEFEREE (BRAQARBITESR) K
HETHARBAATEBR ZBEE
ARXBEBGREGEHERG - BFTER_F
T-FAA-HERNETRAFEI7ES
BRI ARt B X R AR
EEEEERLE IREREAR_-ZZ
THERAZTHRTZARBKREBEF KR
SRBHERRE R RO ERETE
([#Fhetd]) Bk B -2 -FHA=
TREMSREEAEE - PREER
R mAR A E AR BRI M ARITE
ZHEBREZRARENATZZE-

RIEERTE REEBAENARRF KN
EEXARTBRMONERERERDL A S
A 1 22 5 H 72 B 22 P BT R P 3 M (B
80% B mE RBFEFETTEHZ
BREATRBOROBE RZTEEHB
RRRPRHEHITRA10% -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Company may grant options

to eligible participants to subscribe for shares in the Company

subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. A

summary of the New Scheme is as follows:

(a) Purpose

(b) Eligible

Participants

(c) Total number
of shares
available for
issue under
the New

Scheme

(d) Maximum
entitlement of
each Eligible

Participant

To enable the Company to grant options
to Eligible Participants (as defined below)
as incentives and rewards for their

contribution to the Group.

Being employees or executives or
officers of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries (including their respective
executive and non-executive directors) and
suppliers, consultants and advisers who will

or have provided services to the Group.

The total number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the New Scheme
must not exceed 30% of the shares of

the Company in issue.

The total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed
1% of the number of shares of the

Company in issued at the date of grant.

28.
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28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(e) Period under - The period during which the options may
which the be exercised is determined by the
shares must board of directors of the Company at its
be taken up absolute discretion, save that no option
under an may be exercised after more than 10 years
option from the date of adoption of the New

Scheme after it has been granted but
subject to early termination of the New

Scheme.

(f)  Minimum period -  There is no minimum period for which
for which an option must be held before it can be
an option must exercised.
be held before
it can be
exercised

(9) Basis of - It must be at least the highest of (i) the
determining closing price of the shares of the
the exercise Company as stated in the Stock
price Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the

date of the grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing prices
of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet
for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

(h) Remaining - The New Scheme remains in force until
life of the 29 May 2012 unless otherwise terminated
New Scheme in accordance with the terms stipulated

therein.

(i) Period within - 28 days from the date of the offer of
which payments/  the options.
calls/loans
must be made/
repaid

() Amount payable - HK$1.00

on acceptance of
the option

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 38,296,000
share options outstanding under the share option scheme.
The exercise in full of the remaining share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in
the issue of 38,296,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and proceeds, before relevant share issue expenses,
of HK$21,695,000.

28.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the share

option scheme during the year:

Number of share options

BREZE
Granted
during
At the year At
1 January under the Cancelled 31 December
2002 New Scheme during 2002
Grantee R-BECE AEERE theyear R-Z2=f
ERA -A-H R o AEERE T-A=t-8
DirectorsE%
Mr. Chow Siu Lam, 500,000 - - 500,000
Cliff
ROREE
400,000 - - 400,000
900,000 - - 900,000
Mr. Emmy Wu - 3,800,000 - 3,800,000
RRHRE
- 3,800,000 - 3,800,000
Ms. Teo Chor Khin, - 3,800,000 - 3,800,000
Jismyl
REELL
- 3,800,000 - 3,800,000
Mr. Tang Kin Hung, - 3,800,000 - 3,800,000
Barry
il pika
- 3,800,000 - 3,800,000

28.

Date of grant
REAE
31 May 2000

—TT%f

EA=t-8

24 May 2001

“%%-f
TA-tHA

27 June 2002

B

5% _

AAZTEA

27 June 2002

B

R

AAZTEA

27 June 2002

B

R

~AZTEH

104

BRRESE (@)
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FA-BREABBETEUNTHARITREZ

B

Share price of

the Company Exercise period
at grant date ** Exercise  of share options
* RREBEA price *** BREZ
* RAZRGER g T8
HK$2.60 HK$1.82 31 May 2001 to
30 May 2010
260E T 18R T ZE%-
BA=1-H
EI3-TF
BA=TH
HK$1.19 HK$0.91 24 May 2002 to
23 May 2011
11987 0.91% 7 —F%C
RA-tEA
ECR——f
RAE-t=H
HK$0.415 HK$0.431 27 June 2003 to
30 May 2012
041557 0431ET . 2
~EZtEA
E-T-f
TA=1H
HK$0.415 HK$0.431 27 June 2003 to
30 May 2012
041587 04318 it
AEZtEA
E-R-f
AA=1H
HK$0.415 HK$0.431 27 June 2003 to
30 May 2012
041587 04318 it
AAZT+H
E-R-f
AA=1H
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 28. BREFE @)

Number of share options

BRELE
Granted
during Share price of
the year At the Company

under the Cancelled 31 December at grant date ** Exercise period
New Scheme during 2002 R Exercise  of share options
REERE theyear ~R-ZZ=F Date of grant*  AHAAT price *** BREZ
tERA FEERE Tt-A=t1-8 REAH:  ZROER fTRE iidd
- (878,000) 1,320,000 21 Jan 2000 HK$3.175 HK$2.532 21 Jan 2001 to
20 Jan 2010
ZEE%E 3IT5E T 25381 Z5%-%
-B=1-H -F=t-8
EI3-%%
-R=tH
- (200,000) - 29 Sep 2000 HK$2.90 HK$2.108 29 Sept 2001 to
28 Sept 2010
“ZIZ% 2907 21083 —%%-%
nAZthA NAZthA
E_E-%F
ARZTNA
- (50,000) - 27 Dec 2000 HK$1.67 HKS$1.481 27 Dec 2001 to
26 Dec 2010
¥ ¥ 23 1675 T 1481 7T “TE-F
tZA-TtH TZAZTER
EI3-%%
+ZAZtAR
- (960,000) 3,194,000 24 May 2001 HK$1.19 HK$0.91 24 May 2002 to
23 May 2011

Z33-% 1195 T 0.91ETT Z%%C
RAZTEA BAZTEA
EI3--%
5E=1=H
22,286,000 (804,000) 21,482,000 27 Jun 2002 HK$0.415 HK$0.431 27 Jun 2003 to
30 May 2012
i ¥ k3 041537 043137 It 52
AAZTEH NAZHEA
ECR-Cf
BA=TH

22,286,000 (2,892,000) 25,996,000

At
1 January
2002
Grantee R-B22F
ARA -A-8
Other employees
EftES
In aggregate 2,198,000
200,000
50,000
4,154,000
6,602,000
Total

RE 7,502,000

33,686,000 (2,892,000) 38,296,000
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28.

29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

* K

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
the grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date
of the grant of the share options is the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the trading day
immediately prior to the date of the grant of the options.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

RESERVES

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s consolidated reserves and
the movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 43 of the financial

statements.

The revised SSAP 11 was adopted during the year, as
explained in note 2 and under the heading “Foreign
currencies” in note 3 to the financial statements. As
a result, the profit and loss accounts of overseas
subsidiaries are now translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year,
rather than at the exchange rates at the balance sheet
date, as was previously the case. The change has had

no material effect on the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 1999 over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in

exchange therefor.

28.

29.
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29. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company

At 1 January 2001

Net loss for the year

At 31 December 2001
and 1 January 2002

Issue of shares

Share issue expenses
Repurchase of shares
Net loss for the year

At 31 December 2002

The contributed surplus of the Company represents

TEEEBR

[+ |\
A
MH

|11

A1

—f
+
F-

L ]
[l

#IRH
B #ETER
B ERH
REEERER

R-EE-

\—7 —

TZA=t-H

%

Note
it 7t

27
27
27

subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the

reorganisation as mentioned in note 29(a) above, over

the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in

29. f##& (®
(b) NN
Share
premium  Contributed Accumulated

account surplus losses Total
R 10 % B iR BABR 2REE “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET F#T FET
277121 39,431 (1,512) 315,040
- - (105,493) (105,493)
277,121 39,431 (107,005) 209,547
65,808 - - 65,808
(1,648) - - (1,648)
(209) - - (209)
- - (151,563) (151,563)
341,072 39,431 (258,568) 121,935

same

of Bermuda, the Company's contributed surplus is fRo

currently unable to be distributed.

/=WaNN

=7

KRR ZHARER B EXXHT
the excess of the combined net asset value of the 29(a)FT il A —IE E 4B P UL RS M 8
RAIZEHEEFERERE it
BAMBETZARBRGEES D
ZHBE-BREBRE-NN—F2Q
exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 AE AR REER

i O
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

(a)

Prior year adjustments

SSAP 15 (Revised) was adopted during the current
year, as detailed in note 2 to the financial statements,
which has resulted in a change to the layout of the
consolidated cash flow statement. The consolidated
cash flow statement is now presented under three
headings: cash flows from operating activities,
investing activities and financing activities. Previously
five headings were used, comprising the three
headings listed above, together with cash flows from
returns on investments and servicing of finance and
from taxes paid. The significant reclassifications
resulting from the change in presentation are that
taxes paid are now included in cash flows from
operating activities, and interest received is now
included in cash flows from investing activities. The
presentation of the 2001 comparative cash flow
statement has been changed to accord with the new

layout.

The method of calculation of certain items in the
consolidated cash flow statement has changed under
the revised SSAP 15, as explained under the heading
“Foreign currencies” in note 3 to the financial
statements. Cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
now translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchanges rates at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. Previously, the cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries were translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchanges rates at the balance sheet
date. This change has resulted in no impact to the
amounts previously reported for the 2001 comparative

cash flow statement.

30.
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

Prior year adjustments (continued)

Also, the definition of “cash equivalents” under the
revised SSAP 15 has been revised from that under the
previous SSAP 15, as explained under the heading
“Cash and cash equivalents” in note 3 to the financial
statements. This has resulted in trust receipt loans no
longer qualifying as cash equivalents. The amount of
cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow
statement at 31 December 2001 has been adjusted
to remove trust receipt loans amounting to
HK$26,917,000 previously included at that date. The
year's movement in trust receipt loans is now included
in cash flows from financing activities and the
comparative cash flow statement has been changed

accordingly.

Major non-cash transactions

(i) During the year, the Group entered into
finance lease arrangements in respect of fixed
assets with a total capital value at the
inception of the leases of HK$899,000 (2001:
Nil).

(ii) On 2 March 2002, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 30,769,231 shares of the
Company at a price HK$0.65 per share for a
consideration of HK$20,000,000 to settle the
first instalment of the outstanding
consideration of HK$20,000,000 in relation to
the acquisition of a 51% equity interest in
DMX. Further details of which are set out in

notes 27(a) and 31(a)(iii).

30.

Fae)

(a)

(b)

ReEREBXRZHE (@

A—F2RE ()

BESN B TS R E M 3[R & Rk
ReSEY] MR RELETE
FTEERIE 159 BB T ERIE 15
FIReEEM 2 BRDEER-
ZET SR ETRBEERTEI A
ReEEYW- R _TZT—F+-A8
=t—HzEERERERPHR
CEBEYHEDIELARE REB
AR AZBZERBEEBEE X
26,917,000/ Lo EE B E R 2
FEEGHRETARETYHEZ
Bene MEBRRASRERDHE
AR FEE B o

TEFRERS

(i) FRNAREEFETEEER
VEERERE NIV
WRETEEECARNEE
£899,0008 L (=TT —
FiT) o

ARRER0.658 LB
®oBATRE®RAEH
30,769,231 AN 2 & B 15 -
K {E £20,000,0005% 7T > BA
5B BB DMX 51%8%
e oz K B E R E
20,000,0005% JT #) & i 5%
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

(b)

(c)

Major non-cash transactions (continued)

(iii) On 19 July 2002, the Company issued and
allotted a total of 49,964,413 shares of the
Company at a price of HK$0.562 per share to
settle the consideration of HK$28,080,000 in
relation to the acquisition of an additional

10% shareholding in DMX (note 27(c)).

Restricted cash and cash equivalent balances

Certain of the Group’s time deposits are pledged to a
bank to secure a bank overdraft and a bank loan
granted to the Group, as further explained in notes

21 and 34.
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(b) EEFREXRH (HE)
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 30. SZEeREFEBRZHF (@
STATEMENT (continued)

(d) Acquisition of subsidiaries (d) Yt B BT 8 A A

Group
REE

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Net assets acquired: BAZEESE:
Fixed assets EE & E - 239
Cash and bank balances Re RBITHER - 1,898
Accounts receivable, FE W AR X TE AT RRIE
prepayments and R H fth JE R
other receivables - 33,765
Inventories FE - 6,226
Due from a company EEA—MFEAF
of the Group for the FERENE A
subscription of new 2R A7 FE < 3k B
shares of the subsidiary - 65,000
Accounts payable and FE AT BRIE ] E A
other accrued liabilities =R - (19,623)
Minority interests D ER R - (42,877)
- 44,628
Goodwill on acquisition W B B A 2 - 75,372
- 120,000
Satisfied by: AR :
Cash consideration AT R IELT
paid and payable ReRE - 95,000
Reclassification from FEMEREZ
deposit paid for an EffReENmHHE
unlisted investment -

25,000

120,000
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

(d)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries

is as follows:

Annual Report 2002 £ %R

30. HLERERERZHFE @)

(d WBWEMEXR (&)

RRBENBLAR S RZESRRS
EEMRLFRZOTMT:

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash consideration paid ENEENRESRE
and payable - 95,000
Cash consideration payable B R #4:4 Bk B BF K 84
for the subscription of new 2 REEM B A R KK
shares of the subsidiary ENRSNRE
which eliminated on
consolidation - (65,000)
Cash consideration payable &I &K (B
(note 23(b)) (Fft 3£ 23(b)) - (18,720)
Cash consideration paid ENRERE - 11,280
Cash and bank balances BAZRE RRITHEK
acquired - (1,898)
Net outflow of cash and RBBHBRARS R
cash equivalents in respect H&RESEEY
of the acquisition of R
subsidiaries - 9,382

The subsidiaries acquired in the prior year contributed
HK$127,000,000 to the Group’s turnover and HK$12,100,000
to the consolidated loss after tax and before minority interests

for the year ended 31 December 2001 following the

acquisition.

During the current year, the Group acquired an additional

10% equity interest in DMX, as detailed in notes 27(c) and
30(b)(iii).

EFBAZHBARRBARGAEEH
EZFTT—F+ZA=+—HIEFEZE
EBERBRREmRT O HREERA 2K
A E 8 5 5B A 127,000,000% T &
12,100,000 7T ©

REE R - AN E B U EEDMXEE 9N 10 % A% 4 -
15 B M EE27(c) &30(b)(iii) °
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW  30.
STATEMENT (continued)

(e)

Disposal of subsidiaries

HEMBE QR

GAEBERERZKE @)

48,975

Notes HK$000 HK$000
ik=3 FET FET
Net assets disposed of: EEHCEEFE: 13
Fixed assets EEEE 4,083 -
Goodwill EES 16 99,377 -
Inventories FE 4,469 -
Accounts receivable, JE U5 R 3K - TE A RIE
prepayments and other Ko E Ath & Wi 5K
receivables 123,783 -
Pledged time deposits EEAE TR 14,738 -
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTHEH 16,134 -
Accounts payable and JE A BR R R At
other accrued liabilities EstasE (27,009) -
Tax Bi1E (6,740) -
Secured bank loan BHEBRITER (16,399) -
Minority interests DHRE R (44,098) -
168,338 -
Loss on disposal of LEMBARZEIE 7
subsidiaries (119,363) -
48,975 -
Satisfied by: ZRAR:
Cash consideration received B W & EUIE < R E
and receivable 50,000 -
less: Legal expenses paid WoRHE XN 2
incidental to ERER
the disposal (1,025) -
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 30. Z#&8HE&HRERZHE (®

STATEMENT (continued)

(e) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (e) HEMBEAR (&)
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash EALENBRARZESRRESSE
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries BYzREeREHITOT:
is as follows:

2002 2001
—Z22C-F —ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH#&T FrE&IT
Cash consideration received & MW fEU IR & K &
and receivable 50,000 -
Cash consideration not yet & R UE 2 3] & (8 (K 5E20)
received (note 20) (30,000) -
Offset with payable in HIHF A BRI E 2T
relation to the acquisition W R 2 R
of the subsidiaries
in the prior year (10,000) -
Cash and bank balances EHE 2R RIBITHER
disposed of (16,134) -
Legal expenses paid REHEINZ2EEER
incidental to the disposal (1,025) -
Net outflow of cash and HEWBARSRZ2HER
cash equivalents in ReEBEYRLFHE
respect of the disposal
of subsidiaries (7,159) -
The results of the subsidiaries disposed of during the HE-ZTZ-_F+-A=+—H1
year ended 31 December 2002 contributed FEEHZWBRARZESE D5RlE
HK$155,289,000 to turnover and HK$18,457,000 to HE-_ZZ-_F+-_A=+—081
the consolidated loss after tax and before minority FREZEXBREBEMART D E
interests for the year ended 31 December 2002. Ik R =0l 2 &6 B 18

155,289,000/% 7T X2 18,457,000/

TG e
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31. COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments

)

At the balance sheet date, the Group was
committed to make a capital injection to a
subsidiary in the PRC of approximately
HK$12,472,629 (2001: HK$21,052,481).

In 2000, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “S&P Agreement”)
with an independent third party (the “Seller”)
for the acquisition of a 55% shareholding in
a subsidiary (the
consideration of HK$36,750,000, of which
HK$23,176,000 (2001: HK$23,176,000) has
been settled up to the balance sheet date.

“Subsidiary”) for a total

In addition, pursuant to the S&P Agreement,
the Seller is entitled to additional consideration

calculated as follows:

(1) The first additional consideration was
calculated by
HK$6,200,000 by the quotient of the
audited profit after tax of the

multiplying

Subsidiary for the first 12 months
following its acquisition by the Group
and HK$15,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December
2001, the first additional consideration
to the Seller was quantified to be
HK$2,500,000 and the amount was
settled in cash during the year.

31.

iR

(a)

BEAREE

V)

RNEEE RERRER—
KA BB REAER
#112,472,6298 T (ZZFZF
—%:21,052,481%87T) *

[E 5] ) :Ji
*IE\E\ETME& ([EE#H
F)  UBE—RWE AR
([ZMBRF]) Z55%0
- 8 {8 536,750,000
JC B A23,176,0007 7T
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31. COMMITMENTS (continued) 31, AE @
(a) Capital commitments (continued) (a) BARRE ()
(2) The second additional consideration (2) FE_EEINED

was calculated by multiplying
HK$11,170,000 by the quotient of the
audited profit after tax of the
Subsidiary for the second 12 months
following its acquisition by the Group
and HK$27,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December
2002, the second additional
consideration to the Seller was
quantified to be HK$3,200,000 of
which HK$2,430,000 was settled in
cash during the year.

(3) The third additional consideration is to
be calculated by multiplying
HK$14,080,000 by the quotient of the
audited profit after tax of the
Subsidiary for the third 12 months
following its acquisition by the Group
and HK$34,000,000.

Half of the additional consideration may be
satisfied either by way of cash, or by the
allotment and issue of the equivalent value of
shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the
Company, at the option of the Group, with
reference to the closing prices of the
Company’s shares as quoted on The Stock
Exchange on the relevant dates of the
payments. Pursuant to the S&P Agreement,
the number of shares to be allotted and issued
to the Seller shall not be equal to or exceed
9.9% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time, or otherwise the
consideration shall be paid in cash. Further
details of the transaction and the adjustment
basis of the additional consideration are set
out in the Company’s circular to the
shareholders dated 15 August 2000.

15 5% B BB A R E K
SEKREEE @
+ZEA 2 EFE%
B R & m A B
27,000,000 7T
BRSOk
LA 11,170,0007% 7T
HE-_ZT_—_F+
—“RA=+—HIL#F
ERN XN TEH
ZE_BEIMUE
" E B B A
3,200,000 7T &
72,430,000/ T2
REARNNRE &

=E
/B°

(3) E-ETEINED
1B %M B A R ER
E@EKLEEZEE =@
+ZERA 2 EEZ
Br B & m A B
34,000,000/ JT M
HEBRFTE 2 8k
14,080,000 7T &5
:é;o

HHONMEBEERTEAEER
BENBASHELZRBRAD
AR EBENRBEHE
Bt X BT AT R 2 R Th (B 18 A
il RBEITHEBEZAN
NRIRAFEFRAEEOIO
BT 27 AN A K&
BEEHE BRERETT
EHZBROEE TEHEE
Re B AN A R E D%
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REAUNRS I M ZEBER
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31. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a) Capital commitments (continued)

(iii)

In 2000, the Group entered into a sale and
subscription agreement (the “Acquisition
Agreement”) with, inter alia, an independent
third party (the “Vendor”) to acquire 2,710
existing issued shares (the “Existing Shares”)
and to subscribe for 4,880 new shares (the
“New Shares”) in DMX. The considerations for
the Existing Shares and the New Shares were
HK$50,000,000 (the "Existing Shares
Consideration”), subject to the adjustments
detailed below, and HK$90,000,000 (the
“New Shares Consideration”), respectively.
Immediately upon the completion of the
Agreement, the Group owned 51% of the
issued share capital of DMX.

Pursuant to the Agreement, HK$10,000,000
of the Existing Shares Consideration was paid
upon the completion of the Agreement (the
"Completion”) during 2001. The remaining
balance of HK$40,000,000, subject to
adjustments, is payable in three instalments.
HK$20,000,000, HK$10,000,000 and
HK$10,000,000 of the Existing Shares
Consideration will be settled to the Vendor if
the audited profit after tax of DMX for the
year ended 31 December 2001 (the “2001
PAT"), the aggregate of the 2001 PAT and the
audited profit after tax of DMX for the year
ending 31 December 2002 (the “Cumulative
2002 PAT"), and the aggregate of the
Cumulative 2002 PAT and the audited profit
after tax of DMX for the year ending 31
December 2003 (the “Cumulative 2003 PAT")
reach HK$11,600,000, HK$30,500,000 and
HK$59,500,000, respectively.

31.

A (®)

(a)

ExEE ()

(iii)

(B afE) —BuF =%
(87 slx—BHER
REWE ([ZWmE]) A
U B DMXE B & B 1T R D
2,710 (RERHD]) &
RN 4,8800% ([H#TA%
%1) -RERD RFEG
X {8 % Bl £50,000,000%
T ([REBRGRE]) (7
ETXAaFzAE) &
90,000,0005 7T ( [ ¥ A% 5
RE]) - ZBEZ W T
% ANEBE BB DMXE
TR 2 51%

KEzZmE R_TT—
FCOBEBBRHGAREE
71 10,000,000/ T B X #%
TR ([RH5EM]) B
7+ T #% %840,000,0007%
(A FHEE) B =B
FofDMXBE —ZEZT—F
+-A=+t-—BLEFEEZ
KEZBRHB N ([ZF
T-FrBEBREN]) E
11,600,000 0 — T ZF —
F R R F EDMXE &
—EE_F+=-A=+—
HIEFEZEEZGRTE
BH([ZE2Z=FR2ER
RgmH]) 2 @8meE
30,500,000/ T — 2 Z
—FRERB %G B
DMX&E & — & & =
F+-_A=+—HIEFE
BB E G F
(I ZZET=F2EBRHRE
w WOl ) z B oA E
59,500,000:% 7T+ B3R & f%
9 R {8 220,000,000 7T
10,000,000 T &
10,000,000 7T # & 4 -+
FTEH-
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31. COMMITMENTS (continued) 31, EIE @)
(a) Capital commitments (continued) (a) EAREE (8)
Should the 2001 PAT, Cumulative 2002 PAT W —ZFE—-FKHKREK
and Cumulative 2003 PAT exceed wm A D2 - F R
HK$19,000,000, HK$50,100,000 and BEBREEN R _ZT=
HK$97,800,000 , respectively, or fall below FRERNE N
HK$11,600,000, HK$30,500,000 and 2 Bl 8 % 19,000,000/%
HK$59,500,000, respectively, the remaining JC * 50,100,000/ 7T &
Existing Shares Consideration will be adjusted 97,800,000/ T - =k 1K
based on the 2001 PAT, Cumulative 2002 PAT # 11,600,000% 7T »
and Cumulative 2003 PAT, respectively. Further 30,500,000% T &
details of the transaction and the basis of 59,500,000% 7T - AIIZR A &
adjustments are set out in the Company’s MREZHEERE-Z
circular to the shareholders dated 5 December T-ERBERN —TF
2000. “FEREBRBREN R =
TR =FZBHRBEE
FTURB-ZERXHRAR
BEEZE-FTHBHNAE
RAR_FEEEF+ A
T HBRE ZBEHA -
For the New Shares Consideration, the AEERBE_ZZ_F
remaining consideration of HK$35,000,000 TZA=+—RHLEFE B
was settled by the Group in cash during the 2HUABREMTRO K
year ended 31 December 2002. {8 #: %8 35,000,000 7 °
For the remaining balance of the Existing BNRBERNDRESKER
Shares Consideration payable of 40,000,000% 7T - E &
HK$40,000,000, HK$20,000,000 was settled 20,000,000 L2 & B
by the issue and allotment of 30,769,231 FRZER0.65F T B
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.10 1B BT R ERRRERK
each during the year at a price of HK$0.65 HECIOE Tz @R
per share (note 27(a)). A further amount of 30,769,2310% #78 (Bt &t
HK$10,000,000 was offset against the 27(a)) * $%5M10,000,0007%
consideration receivable in relation to the TLIE B F A EDMXZ
disposal of DMX during the year (note 30(e)). FE R B K (A
As at balance sheet date, the remaining 30(e)) cREEE R HRERD
balance of the Existing Shares Consideration X {B 82 %8 /10,000,000

was HK$10,000,000 (note 23(b)). 7C (M 7E23(b)) ©
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31. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a) Capital commitments (continued)

According to the Agreement, the Group may,
at its sole discretion, elect to satisfy the whole
or any part of the remaining balance of the
Existing Shares Consideration by the issue and
allotment of such number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each in the Company (the
“Consideration Shares”) to the Vendor
calculated by reference to the average of the
closing prices of the Company’s shares as
quoted on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for the five trading days immediately
before the relevant dates of payments.
However, if the exercise of the right of election
would result in the Vendor becoming
interested in 10% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company at the relevant time,
the Group shall pay the Existing Shares

Consideration in cash to the Vendor.

31.
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31

31.

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b)

Operating lease arrangements

The Group leased certain of its office premises under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for office
premises are negotiated for terms ranging from one
to five years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to

the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2002, the Company and the Group
had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and

buildings falling due as follows:

31, EME(

(b)

120
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#)

REAERY

RipEEHERE A EBE D
BFEYELE-WEAPLATE
R—ERFAF-HEGHER KT
EXEPXNRES AHREAR
BERDSILEMNHRES-

R-_ZBEZE_F+_A=+—H0'1R
BA R+ i R AEF R AT ER S AT
HA RNRRAIRAEEELAT HH
BRI REHESEEET

Company

ARF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Within one year —F R 2,483 2,117 1,007 698
In the second to fifth years, #_ZF A%
inclusive (BEMTF
BIEEAN) 1,268 324 740 -
3,751 2,441 1,747 698

Save as aforesaid, the Company and the Group did not have

any other significant commitments as at 31 December 2002.

BREXFAEIN ARRARAEBRR-F
EoF+ A=t -HEEE@MEMER

i



32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32. HAREE

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided REEB ARV BRRPEHEZXRE
for in the financial statements were as follows: BT

Group Company

rEE |

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#7 FH7 FHT FHT

Guarantees in respect BEHNEFPRHERE
of performance bonds in BPER
favour of contract

customers

Guarantees given to finance FE FARAE T
lease companies in respect EEZRERE
of the finance lease BRimse T
facilities granted to certain R EFEE
directors of the Company NAEIZER

Guarantees given to banks in Fti% ¥ & T I B
connection with banking AR R (FA
facilities granted to certain & ZDMX*) 2
subsidiaries and (to DMX BITERMA T
disposed of during AT 2 IR
the year*)
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32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 32. HAERE

* The Group provided guarantees of HK$60,000,000 to a bank
for banking facilities granted to the DMX Group, a subgroup
of the Group which was disposed of during the year. The
guarantee was subsequently terminated on 24 February 2003.

As at 31 December 2002, the banking facilities granted to
the subsidiaries and DMX were utilized to the extent of
approximately HK$1,106,000 (2001: HK$14,909,000) and
HK$4,825,000 (2001: HK$16,285,000), respectively.

The Group had a contingent liability in respect of possible
future long service payments to employees under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance, with a maximum possible
amount of HK$553,000 as at 31 December 2002, as further
explained in note 3 to the financial statements. The contingent
liability has arisen as a number of current employees have
achieved the required number of years of service to the Group,
to the balance sheet date, in order to be eligible for long
service payments under the Employment Ordinance if their
employment is terminated under certain circumstances. A
provision has not been recognised in respect of such possible
payments, as it is not considered probable that the situation
will result in a material future outflow of resources from the

Group.

* AEERBEFENEHEAEEBET
DMXEBZHBITE RGBT —RIBAT
60,000,000/ TTHER - ZEREER =
EE=FE_F - +MWBEKI-

WZZTZ_F+-_F=+—H0 WEQ
R R DMXE 5 5 &) A AT R RITE R E
41,106,000 T (Z T T — 4 :
14,909,0005% 7T) & 4,825,0005% 7T (=
TE—4:16,285,0008 L) °

B ISR R M 3 — S M REER =
T -_F+-A=+—BREFERER
PIgtAEATREEMEE XN RBRE S
B AR BE P8 ES53,000% Lo % 3k
ABBRENETHENRBEERESR
HEARBAEENFEE ERE MR
EEFH MESHEE TERLERRE BE
EREDNRARE S ANEERAZE
RAAREEREELERERRLBEEKRNR
KRB Z AT B R -
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed in elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties and connected persons during the year:

33.

FHEATIXRZREERS

B BmEREMBOMIKEEIN RAF
B AKERERH
AT 5:

BALTRAEANLEST

HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET
Purchases of information MR ERE AR ER:
technology products from:
Related companies BEH@ERNT
— certain members of the —EREMNEE
Datacraft Asia Ltd ZAaTHRE R (M)
Group (note) - 225
— a company in which a —ARRAMBAR—H
director of a EEHEERER AT
subsidiary of the
Company has a
beneficial interest 81 2,346
— a company in which a —RKAFIMRBAR —RBRES
director of a FEEZZ22AA
subsidiary of the
Company is also
a director 1,016 -
Sales of information MATRARHEEMNRME®R:
technology products to:
— a company in which —ARRA—MBARIZES
directors of a FEEE2LA
subsidiary of the
Company are also
directors 4,553 11,619
Rental income received from: BT &7 WEEE KA -
— a company in which —RNEBMBEB19.9%E 2 QA
the Group has a 19.9%
equity interest - 526
— a company in which a —ARRAIMBAR —RESHSR
director of a subsidiary EnmsAa
of the Company
has a beneficial interest 171 307
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33.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 33.
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
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EHEAIRSGRBERS (8

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Proceeds from sale of a MARR—BREFHEARSE
motor vehicle to a director 7 A5 5118
of the Company - 257
Proceeds from sale of a MAAR —ZEBRTEEHE
motor vehicle to a resigned 3B 2 FT{5 A
director of the Company - 664
Advance to an investee HWRERB 2 BN
company (note 17) (Mt&E17) 12,439 8,329
Bank loan secured by a BARBINEAR—BLE
corporate guarantee from AR SEDAA AE R 1R R R
a minority shareholder ZIRITERK
of a subsidiary of the
Company - 935
Corporate guarantee RETENEHEREEET
provided to a banker for DMXE & 2 $R 17 B i 2 4
banking facilities granted B A RER (EE32)
to the DMX Group,
a subgroup of the
Group which was disposed
of during the year (note 32) 60,000 -

Note:  Mr. Derek Peter Althorp, a director of the Company B 5t -

who resigned as a director on 22 October 2001, is a
director of Datacraft Asia Ltd., a company listed on
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.
Mr. Luk Chung Po, Terence, a director of the
Company, resigned as a director of a member of
the Datacraft Asia Ltd group during the prior year.

R-BEE—F+A-+_HHREALT
EEVMEELEAENNERSXS
FBERAR EMzENTEMNERZE
- ARAIEEREABFEEEFREE
MONEE-—RKEARZEEHS-
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33.

34,

35.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

In the opinion of the directors, the above related party
transactions were entered into by the Group in the ordinary
course of business and on terms agreed with the minority
shareholders and related companies. The directors consider
that these transactions were made according to prices and

conditions similar to those offered to other third parties.

Details of the terms of the outstanding balances with related
parties and minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries at
31 December 2002 are set out in notes 19, 20, 22 and 23 to

the financial statements.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in notes 2 and 4 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of certain new and revised
SSAPs and the disposal of DMX during the current year, the
accounting treatment and presentation of certain items and
balances in the financial statements and certain supporting
notes have been revised to comply with the new requirements
and to give more details about the Group’s current business
operations. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments have
been made and certain comparative amounts have been

reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 16 April 2003.

33.

34.

35.

EREAIRBRBERS (&)

EERREEBAAEALRZNAEEE
BEEBTIRE BRI ARERFR
EZGETET - BEERARLERHZER
R B4 T H AL S =& 2 B8 K&
#e

NRZZTT_F+_A=+-—HHRE@EEA
TRETHBRARLHEBREZ REELERK
IR B RERMFE19 - 200 22 %
23

o g

WA RS R R BT T 2 R 4 — Rl - AR AR
FERMNE T RGBT ENAR
HEDMX - MK 2 A THBE REHRR
ETWEzedRESTARERTZACIE
HIIE UMaMRE LREEZEHEAR
SEREEBZER -Hit EFEEET L
FERABYBHHEE THRSE UAH
BARFEZE2WMPA -
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